Syniti

Syniti Replicate

Microsoft Windows Cluster Setup Guide

Version 10.3



Table of Contents

Microsoft Windows Cluster Setup Guide1
Architecture1
Key Failover Concepts
Main Requirements Summary2
Setup Summary2
Download and Install Syniti Replicate (Node 1 and Node 2)
Set Up the Syniti Replicate Environment on Node 14
Set up the Metadata (Node 1 only)4
Set up a Source Connection (Node 1 only)9
Enable Transactional Replication13
Create a Target Connection (Node 1 Only)15
Create a Target Table (Node 1 Only)16
Define the Replication (Node 1 Only)22
Set Up the Syniti Replicate Environment on Node 2
Set up the Metadata
Test the Source Connection
Test the Target Connection
Test the Replication
Stop the Syniti Replicate Services (Node 1 and Node 2)
Set Up the Failover Cluster
Start the Role (Node 1 or Node 2)43
Test Failover Cluster Operations

This guide describes how to set up Syniti Replicate to run in mirroring mode in a two-node Microsoft Windows Server 2019 Failover Cluster. The steps assume that you are familiar with installing and configuring Syniti Replicate in a normal single machine environment before attempting to set it up in a cluster.

This guide **does not** cover the installation and management of the Windows Cluster environment, including details of the set up for Failover and Roles. For more information, refer to the Microsoft article <u>Create a Failover Cluster</u>.

Architecture

The diagram below shows two nodes in the cluster where Syniti Replicate will be installed and the locations of the Syniti Replicate Metadata and the Log Files Folder (both external to the cluster.)



Key Failover Concepts

Syniti Replicate uses two main components running as Windows services: the **Server Agent** and the **Replication Agent**. If the Log Server Agent service is used to read logs for the source, then Syniti Replicatethe Log Server Agent service needs to be running.

When Syniti Replicate fails over from one system to another, the above three services are stopped on one node, and run on the other node. The **Failover Cluster Manager** is used to create a Cluster Role that contains the 3 services to run on either node when a failure occurs.

Main Requirements Summary

- A Microsoft Windows Server 2019 Failover Cluster with two nodes (Microsoft Windows Server 2012 and above supported).
- An external fail-safe database where Syniti Replicate metadata is stored
- An external fail-safe hard-drive where the Log Server Agent's binary log files are stored
- .NET Data Providers for accessing the source, target and metadata databases

All other requirements are related to the setup of the Windows Failover Cluster and are not addressed in this document. Please refer to Microsoft documentation.

Setup Summary

Use the summary below to make sure that you complete all the setup steps for each node in the cluster.

Install a two-node Windows Server Failover Cluster (See <u>Microsoft</u> <u>documentation</u>)	 Install and configure a two-node Windows Server 2012 Failover Cluster using the Microsoft documentation Make sure the cluster is set up with all latest Windows updates and can be managed using the Failover Cluster Manager. 		
Download and Install Syniti Replicate on Node 1	The <u>Knowledge Platform Product Suites article</u> acts as a hub to point to various resources. To download and/or register Syniti Replicate, log in to the support site, then click the relevant link in the Replicate section of the article.		
(See <u>Download and</u>	<u>Syniti Knowledge Base</u>		
Install Syniti	Enter a generic support ticket		
<u>Replicate</u> below)	In the DBMoto.server.config file, set SaveMetadataInterval to 20.		
Set up Syniti Replicate	In the Syniti Replicate Management Center:		
on Node 1 (See <u>Set up the Syniti</u> <u>Replicate Environment</u> on Node 1 below)	1. In the Metadata Explorer, create a metadata connection to an external failsafe		
	database.		
	2. In the Metadata Explorer, create a source connection.		
	3. Check Use Transactional Replication.		
	4. Fill out the required fields.		
	5. Create a target connection.		
	6. Create a replication.		

	7. Test the replication(s).
	8. Stop the Replication Agent Service, Server Agent, and Log Server Agent service (if used.)
	9. Use the Windows Control Panel to change the Startup Type of the three services from Automatic to Manual.
Download and Install Syniti Replicate on Node 2 (See <u>Download and</u>	 The <u>Knowledge Platform Product Suites article</u> acts as a hub to point to various resources. To download and/or register Syniti Replicate, log in to the support site, then click the relevant link in the Replicate section of the article. <u>Syniti Knowledge Base</u>
Install Syniti Replicate	Enter a generic support ticket
below)	In the DBMoto.server.config file, set SaveMetadataInterval to 20.
Set up Syniti Replicate	In the Syniti Replicate Management Center:
on Node 2 (See <u>Set up the Syniti</u>	1. In the Metadata Explorer, create a metadata connection to the database used for Node 1.
on Node 2 below)	2. All connections and replications should be available from Node 2.
	3. If using the Log Server Agent for replication, install the LSA Service on node 2 by opening the Connection Properties and the Setup Info dialog.
	4. Test the replication(s).
	5. Stop the Replication Agent Service, Server Agent, and Log Server Agent service (if used.)
	6. Use the Windows Control Panel to change the Startup Type of the three services from Automatic to Manual.
Create a Failover Role	In the MS Windows Failover Cluster Manager:
in the Failover Cluster	1. Configure a Generic Service Role for the Server Agent Service.
(See <u>Set Up the</u> <u>Failover Cluster</u> below)	2. Add the Replication Agent Service and the Log Server Agent service (if used) as additional resources to the role.
	3. Add a dependency to the Replication Agent Service to ensure that the Server Agent Service is started first.
	4. Start the role.
Test the Failover	In the MS Windows Failover Cluster Manager:
Cluster	1. Select the role on the current node.
(See <u>Test Failover</u> Cluster Operations	2. Right-click and choose Move, then Select Node to specify the new node.
below)	3. Manually moving the role from one node to the other simulates what would happen in a failover situation.

Download and Install Syniti Replicate (Node 1 and Node 2)

NOTE: Complete this section on both Node 1 and Node 2 of your MS Windows Failover Cluster.

- 1. On the system where you plan to install Syniti Replicate, make sure that you are running Microsoft .NET Framework 4.6 or above.
- 2. Download Syniti Replicate.
- 3. In the registration form, be sure to put an email address where you can easily retrieve the registration key.
- 4. Unzip the downloaded file.
- 5. Once you have received the registration key via email, install the product using setup.exe.
- 6. Enter the license key information during installation.
- 7. Display the Syniti Replicate install folder and locate the file DBMoto.server.config.
- 8. Open the file in a text editor.
- 9. In the optionList section, change the value of SaveMetadataInterval to 20.
- 10. Save the file.

Set Up the Syniti Replicate Environment on Node 1

Set up the Metadata (Node 1 only)

NOTE: Complete this section on Node 1 of your MS Windows Failover Cluster to create a new metadata database. Then on Node 2, point to the same metadata database as described below.

Syniti Replicate provides a default database (Microsoft SQL Server CE) for your metadata (all the information stored about your replication setup.) The default metadata database resides on the same system as the Syniti Replicate installation. However, when using Syniti Replicate in a Failover Cluster, it is critical to set up the metadata in a database external to the cluster that is always available. To set up a metadata in a different location:

1. Start the Management Center.

🚯 Syniti Replicate - Management Center FILE VIEW TOOLS WINDOW HELP 🏟 🗙 🖻 🐂 🚅 🔛 || 😮 Start Page **Object Browser** Replication х 😭 New Metadata | 📲 🤽 🔅 | 🌅 🛟 📜 🖃 🚯 Syniti Replicate 🖃 🗐 local Syniti Replicate 🖃 🌍 metadata E Sources E Targets ADLS Gen2 ± 8 WELCOME 🗄 🧮 SQL Server Replications ± (Groups Get Started >> Set up and run a replication >> What's New in Release 10.1.0 New features and changes in this release

- 2. In the Metadata Explorer, right click on the **local** node and choose **Add New Metadata**.
- 3. In the Metadata Connection wizard, type a Metadata name and select the database type from the dropdown list. You are free to use any database you want for metadata, with the exception of IBM Db2 for i or IBM Db2 for z/OS.

NOTE: If you are setting up the metadata on Node 2, you should select the same settings as on Node 1.

💰 Metadata Connection	Wizard	×
		Syniti Replicate
Select provider Set connection	Select the datab use. We recomm	pase that will contain the Syniti Replicate metadata tables and indicate which provider to nend that you create and use a database exclusively for Syniti Replicate metadata
string Select qualifier	Metadata name	Cluster Metadata
Actions	Data Provider(s)	
Summary	Database:	Microsoft SQL Server CE 🗸
22 - 22 - 23 - 23 - 23 - 23 - 23 - 23 -	Provider:	Microsoft.NET Driver for SQL Server CE ~
Contraction of the second	Assembly:	SqlServerCe\System.Data.SqlServerCe.dll
		< Back Next > Cancel Help

- 4. Enter a value in the Assembly field as required for the database you selected.
- 5. Click Next.
- In the Set Connection String screen, type the location of the database and any additional data required (for example, in some cases you need to supply a port number.) For more information, request a Syniti Replicate Setup Guide that is specific to your database (available from the Syniti Technical Support team via the <u>Help</u> <u>Center</u>.)

NOTE: If you are setting up the metadata on Node 2, you should select the same settings as on Node 1.

💰 Metadata Connectio	n Wizard	×
	Syniti Replicat	te
Select provider Set connection	Specify the connection parameters for the metadata.	
string Select qualifier Define metadata Actions Summary	Connection properties Required Data Source Password V Optional Enlist False Encrypt False Mode Read Write ExtendedProperties Read Write	~
	Data Source The name or network address of the instance of SQL Server to which to connect.	
	< Back Next > Cancel H	elp

- 7. Add the user ID and password for the database.
- 8. For all other providers, edit at least the **Required** connection properties by clicking in the property value field and typing a new value. The list of **Optional** properties for .NET and OLE DB providers contains the most commonly used properties for the providers. Edit these as needed. Note that some properties are displayed with default values (no bold text.) Any values that you add or edit are displayed in bold text. Check the documentation for your provider for a complete list of properties. You can set the value of the ExtendedProperties property to define additional property-value pairs. The syntax for defining property-value pairs is: prop1=val1;prop2=val2;....
- 9. Click **Test** to test the connection to the database server.
- 10. Click Next.
- 11. In the **Define Metadata** screen, check the most appropriate option. For this document, the assumption is that you are creating a new database when you set up Syniti Replicate on Node 1. Once the database has been created for Node 1, you can point to the same database from Node 2. When you are working on Node 2, select the option **Open an Existing Database**.

💰 Metadata Connection	Wizard
	Syniti Replicate
Select provider Set connection string Select qualifier Define metadata Actions Summary	Determine if you want to create a new set of metadata or if you want to import metadata from a backup file. Define Metadata Create a new metadata database Restore the metadata set from a backup file: Open existing metadata database
	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > <u>C</u> ancel <u>H</u> elp

- 12. Click Next, then complete the wizard.
- 13. In the Metadata Explorer, right click on the metadata that you just created and choose **Set As Default** from the menu.

Your new metadata database will be used for all subsequent operations on Syniti Replicate.

- 14. In the Metadata Explorer, right click on the local node, and choose Replication Agent Options from the menu.
- 15. In the Replication Agent Options dialog, go to the **Log** tab.
- 16. Make sure that **Write Log to File** is selected, and specify a path to an external failsafe file location that can be accessed by both Node 1 and Node 2.
- 17. Click **OK** to complete the dialog.

🔅 Replication Agent	Options			×
🖉 Trace	Alerts	🖂 Mail	\Lambda Advar	nced
差 General	💠 Co	nversion Rules	10 L	og
<u>L</u> og Settings:		(<u>S</u> ettings	
Write Log To:	File	~		
Only One One <u>F</u> ile One File	e File. Every 0 <mark>∲</mark> With <u>S</u> ize Limited t	Days.	Mb.	
🔽 <u>K</u> eep Ma	x 10 🖨 L	og Files.		
Log Files <u>P</u> at	h:			
Log				
Activate Log	g History g <u>P</u> erformance			
Help			<u>o</u> k <u>c</u>	ancel

Set up a Source Connection (Node 1 only)

- 1. Make sure you have a database connection via a .NET data provider to your source database:
 - Install and configure one of the supported data access products. See <u>this Help Center article</u> for a current list of supported providers.
 - From the data access product, test the connection to the database.
 - Create a connection string for the data access product/database you are using. Check the documentation for the data access product for information on how to do this.
 - Check that the user ID you are planning to use for the database connection has sufficient permissions to complete all operations in Syniti Replicate. The user ID should have permissions to connect, select tables, insert/update/delete records. For complete details, see the **Syniti Replicate Setup Guide** that is specific to your source database (available from the Syniti Technical Support team via the <u>Help Center</u>).
- 2. Start the Management Center.

- 3. In the Metadata Explorer, expand the metadata node to view the Sources and Targets nodes.
- 4. Select the Sources node.
- 5. From the right mouse button menu, choose Add New Connection.
- 6. In the Source Connection Wizard, follow steps to add a connection string and test the connection to the database.

💰 Add Source Connectio	on Wizard	×
		Syniti Replicate
Select provider	Select the data	base that contains source data to be replicated and indicate which provider to use.
string	Source name	
Select tables	Name:	Oracle
Actions Summary	Data Provider(s)	
	Database:	Second Cracle
	Provider:	The second secon
	Assembly:	C:\app\client\Ale\product\12.1.0\client_1\ODP.NET\bin\4\Oracle.DataAccess.dll
C. C		C Browse
		< Back Next > Cancel Help

7. In the Select Provider screen, fill out the following fields:

Source Name

Type a name to identify the source connection. This name appears in the Metadata Explorer as a way to group connections for a specific replication.

Database

Select the source database from the drop-down list.

Provider

The value for the .NET Provider is displayed automatically. You do not need to change this value.

Assembly

Type the path to the provider DLL. If the value is not available, Syniti Replicate displays a message when you continue in the Source Connection wizard, allowing you to go back and type in the path. Example:

C:\oracle10_2\client\odp.net\bin\2.x\Oracle.DataAccess.dll.

8. In the Set Connection String screen, fill out the following fields:

Connection Properties

Edit at least the **Required** connection properties by clicking in the property value field and typing a new value.

💰 Add Source Connection	ו Wizard	×
		Syniti Replicate
Select provider	Specify the connection parameters for th	e source connection.
Set connection string	Connection properties	
Select tables	✓ Required	
Actions	Data Source	
Summany	Password	
Summary	✓ Optional	
	Connection Timeout	15
-	Connection Lifetime	0
1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 -	Statement Cache Purge	False
	Statement Cache Size	0
	Proxy User Id	
	Proxy Password	
C. C	Data Source Oracle Net Service Name that identifies	the database to connect to.
	(< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > <u>C</u> ancel <u>H</u> elp

For Synchronization Replications:

The login/user ID that you provide must be unique to Syniti Replicate. It should not be used for any transactions occurring in either database involved in the synchronization. Syniti Replicate does not replicate transactions by the user you specify in this connection. This user ID is used by Syniti Replicate

during synchronization to read the database logs and perform the synchronization operations. Therefore, any transactions found in the logs with this user ID are not replicated as part of the synchronization data.

For Oracle Replications:

If you are replicating from Oracle using mirroring or synchronization, enter a user ID which will be exclusively used by Syniti Replicate and has the authority to read the database transaction log (redo log.) See a detailed list of authorities needed.

The list of **Optional** properties for .NET and OLE DB providers contains the most commonly used properties for the providers. Edit these as needed. Note that some properties are displayed with default values (no bold text.) Any values that you add or edit are displayed in bold text. Check the documentation for your provider for a complete list of properties. You can set the value of the ExtendedProperties property to define additional property-value pairs. The syntax for defining property-value pairs is: prop1=val1;prop2=val2;....

Edit

Click **Edit** to open a text entry window where you can paste or type a connection string for your provider. This is offered as an alternative to the Connection Properties grid, but should be used with great care because an error in the connection string can cause a connection to fail or to have unexpected properties. This window displays any connection information that you have already entered in connection string format. Note that default values are not displayed as part of the connection string.

Test

Click Test to make sure that the connection correctly opens a database connection.

9. In the Select Tables screen, choose the tables that you plan to replicate.

When creating a replication, you will be able to select an object for replication from those that you have chosen in this wizard. If you create multiple replications, you can select an object for each replication that you are defining. Use the **Select All Tables** and **Deselect All Tables** buttons to work with multiple tables. Use the **Hide System Tables** checkbox to limit the number of tables displayed.



Select a database owner/schema, then click this button to check all tables under the owner/schema.



Select a database owner/schema, then click this button to uncheck all tables under the owner/schema.

10. In the Actions screen, check the option Launch the Enable Transactional Setup Wizard.

💰 Add Source Connect	ion Wizard X
	Syniti Replicate
Select provider Set connection	Choose the action(s) to perform at the end of the wizard.
string Select tables Actions Summary	At the end of the wizard: Launch the Enable Transactional Replication Wizard Check this option to set up transaction details for mirroring or synchronization replications that use this connection as a source.
	Launch the Add Target Connection Wizard Proceed with the definition of a target connection.
	< Back Next > Cancel Help

11. Complete the wizard.

Enable Transactional Replication

This section assumes you are planning to replicate data to a target using mirroring (rather than Refresh) from a relational database. For Refresh replications, you do not need to complete the Enable Transactional Replication wizard. If you have checked the Source Connection wizard option to launch the Enable Transactional Replication wizard, follow the steps below. To open the wizard from the Management Center, choose the connection in the Metadata Explorer, then right-click to choose Transactional Setup > Enable...

In the Enable Transactional Replication wizard:

1. Select the type of transactional replication to use. The options depend on the source database and can include log reader, log server agent, triggers, plus log reader API (for IBM Db2 for i only). Check the help for more information on the best option.

If you choose the Log Server Agent option, you will need to set up some files in a path that is accessible to both nodes in the cluster.

💰 Enable Transactional F	Replication Wizard X	
	Syniti Replicate	
Log Type Log Settings	Choose the appropriate type of logging for this connection. For more information, see <u>Choosing a Log</u> Type for Transactional Replications	
Actions Summary	 Log Type Log Reader [Default option] Every replication will activate a reader thread to check for new transactions to replicate. Choose this option if you plan to add a limited number of replications and do not want to install additional services on the system that is running Syniti Replicate. 	
	 Log Reader API Same as Log Reader with additional support for Large Object Binary values in transactional mode. Select this option if tables contain LOBs. 	
	Log Server Agent A Server Agent service will be created to autonomously read the transaction log from the database. Choose this option if you plan to add many replications and you need a scalable solution that doesn't require multiple simultaneous connections to the database.	
	< Back Next > Cancel Help)

2. Click **Next** to enter the log settings. The fields and appropriate values depend on the database and log type. You can obtain a setup guide for a specific relational database by making a request in the <u>Help Center</u>.

For the Log Server Agent, the Log Server Folder and Log Files Folder paths should be accessible from both nodes in the cluster.

- 3. Click **Next** to verify your settings against the source connection to the database. If any information is missing, you will not be able to proceed.
- 4. In the Actions screen, check the option to launch the Add Target Connection wizard.
- 5. Click **Next** to review your changes.
- 6. Click **Finish** to complete the wizard.

The source connection is now set up for transactional replications.

Create a Target Connection (Node 1 Only)

To create a target connection, either the Target Connection Wizard opens automatically because you selected that option in the last screen of the Enable Transactional Replication wizard, or you can select the **Targets** node in the Metadata Explorer.

Note that you must install, configure and test the connection to the database to which you are replicating before attempting to create a target connection to the database from Syniti Replicate. For example, if you are replicating from Oracle to MySQL, you need .NET data providers installed and tested for both Oracle and MySQL.

1. From the right mouse button menu, choose Add New Connection.



2. In the Target Connection Wizard, select the database to which you are replicating then follow steps to add a connection string and test the connection to the database.

If you are creating a connection to an Oracle database, refer to the steps above (<u>Source Connection</u>) for configuring the connection. Note that you do not need to configure the Setup Info screen unless you are planning to perform a synchronization replication using Oracle.

For all other databases, check this Help Center article before entering a value in the Assembly field.

💰 Add Source Connectio	on Wizard	×
		Syniti Replicate
Select provider	Select the datab	ase that contains source data to be replicated and indicate which provider to use.
string Select tables Actions	Source name Name:	HANA Source
Summary	Data Provider(s)	SAP HANA
	Provider:	SAP Hana .NET Driver
	Assembly:	C:\Program Files\sap\hdbclient\ado.net\v4.5\Sap.Data.Hana.v4.5.dll
and the second second		
		< Back Next > Cancel Help

3. Choose the tables to which you plan to replicate.

If a table does not exist, continue to the next screen without selecting a table. You can use the Create Target Table wizard once you have created the connection.

4. Complete the wizard.

Create a Target Table (Node 1 Only)

If you are replicating to a database where no target table exists, you need to create the target table before defining the replication. If the target table already exists in the database to which you are replicating, go to <u>Defining the Replication</u>. The Target Table wizard allows you to create tables from Syniti Replicate but the target schema/owner etc. (depending on your database type) must have been created prior to running the wizard.

- 1. Expand the Syniti Replicate tree to display the table that contains the data you want to replicate.
- 2. Select the table and drag it to the target connection name to open the Create Target Table wizard.



3. In the **Select Source Connection** screen, choose the source name from the drop-down list that includes all the source connections you have created.

💧 Create Target Table W	/izard				×
			Syniti	Replica	te
Source connection	Select the source table	to be copied.			
Target connection					
Define columns SQL script Actions	Connection Name:	IBMDB2i-Src		~	
Summary	Table Name:	OLETEST.CUSTOMER		✓ Open Table	
		< <u>B</u> ack	<u>N</u> ext >	Cancel	<u>H</u> elp

- 4. Choose the table that you want to replicate from the drop-down list.
- 5. If you want more information about the table before proceeding, click **Open Table...**.
- 6. Click Next to go to the Select Target Connection screen.

💧 Create Target Table W	izard	×
		Syniti Replicate
Source connection	Select the target connec	ction and define the target table name.
Target connection		
Define columns		
SQL script	Connection Name:	SQLServer-Tgt ~
Actions	Database Name:	Test ~
Summary	Owner Name:	dbo ~
	Table Name:	CUSTOMER
		< Back Next > Cancel Help

Choose a target source name from the drop-down list that includes all the target connections you have created.

- 7. Type a name for the table you wish to create in the target database. This table will contain the replicated data.
- 8. Click Next to go to the Define Columns screen.

💰 Create Target Table Wiz	ard										×
							Syr	niti	i Rep	lica	ate
Source connection	The ta conte:	able structure has xt menu on the gi	s been auto rid if you w	mat ant	ically gene to change	rated in th the table s	e source ta structure.	able. U	se the buttons	or the	
Target connection	Table S	tructure									
Define columns	=+ :	* * * * <mark>*</mark> \	*			Cre	eate lable i	Rule	Automatic	`	
SQL script		Field name	Туре		Size	Precisi	Scale	Null	Defaul	Identity	Une
Actions	0- 1	CUSTOMERID	int	\leq	0	0	0				
Actions		TERRITORYID	int	\leq	0	0	0	2		U	
Summary		ACCOUNTINU	varchar	\leq	10	0	0				8
		COSTOMERT	hinany	\geq	16	0	0				H
		MODIETEDD	datetime?	Ě	10	0	6				H
		MODIFIEDD	Galetimez	· · ·	0	0	0				
					< E	Back	Next >		Cancel		Help

- 9. Review the columns that will be created in the target table. You can add or remove columns as well as designate one or more columns as a primary key.
- 10. When you have finished editing the target table columns, click **Next** to go to the **SQL Script** screen.

Copyright © 2023 BackOffice Associates, LLC d/b/a Syniti. All rights reserved. This document contains confidential and proprietary information and reproduction is prohibited unless authorized by Syniti. Names appearing within the product manuals may be trademarks of their respective owners.

💰 Create Target Table V	lizard	×
		Syniti Replicate
Source connection Target connection Define columns SQL script Actions Summary	<pre>Table Creation Script # # Create table CUSTOMER # create table "Test"."dbo".CUSTOMER (CUSTOMERID int NOT NULL , TERRITORYID int NULL , ACCOUNTNUMBER varchar(10) NOT NULL , CUSTOMERTYPE nchar(1) NOT NULL , ROWGUID binary(16) NOT NULL , MODIFIEDDATE datetime2(6) NOT NULL , primary key(CUSTOMERID)) ;</pre>	
C. C		Ψ
	< Back	Next > Cancel Help

- 11. If necessary, edit the SQL script that generates the table.
- 12. Click **Next** to review the wizard settings in the **Summary** screen.
- 13. To create additional tables, check the option **Create another table**. This opens another Create Target Table wizard when this wizard is complete.
- 14. To go directly to creating a replication once this wizard is complete, check the option **Proceed with the Definition of a Replication**.

This opens the Replication wizard when the Create Target Table wizard is complete.

- 15. Click **Finish** to create the target table.
- 16. Note that the new table is not automatically displayed in the Metadata Explorer. Click **Yes** to add the newly created table to the list of target tables.



Define the Replication (Node 1 Only)

This section explains how to create a single table-to-table replication. However, most real applications consist of many such replications and, if the replications use the same source and target databases, it may make sense to create a replication group to optimize database connection and log access times. Use the Help menu in the Management Center to find out more information about grouping replications.

- 1. Expand the Metadata Explorer tree to display the table that contains the data you want to replicate.
- 2. Select the table.
- 3. From the right mouse button menu, choose **Replication** then **Create New Replication...**



- 4. In the **Define Replication Type** screen, type a name to identify the replication.
- 5. Optionally provide a description of the replication.
- 6. In the Replication Mode area, choose Continuous Mirroring.

💰 Create Replication W	izard	×
		Syniti Replicate
Replication type Source connection Source log info	Mirroring mode will defin server. Replication Name Replication Name	e a one-way transactional replication, from the source server to the target
Target connection	Description:	Create ✓ Create
Mapping info Scheduling Actions Summary	Replication Type Refresh Continuous Mirror Synchronization	ing
		< Back Next > Cancel Help

7. Click **Next** to go to the Select Source Connection screen.

💧 Create Target Table W	/izard				×
			Syniti f	Replicate	9
Source connection	Select the source table	to be copied.			
Target connection					
Define columns SQL script Actions	Connection Name:	IBMDB2i-Src		~	
Summary	Table Name:	OLETEST.CUSTOMER		✓ ✓ Open Table	
		< <u>B</u> ack	<u>N</u> ext >	Cancel <u>H</u> elp	

- 8. Choose the source name from the drop-down list that includes all the source connections you have created.
- 9. Choose the table that you want to replicate from the drop-down list.
- 10. If you want more information about the table before proceeding, click Open Table
- 11. Click **Next** to go to the Source Log Info screen. The fields in this screen depend somewhat on the source database, but the Transaction ID, Transaction Timestamp and Read Interval fields are always present.

💰 Create Replication Wize	ard			×
			Syniti Re	plicate
Replication type Source connection Source log info Target connection Target log info Mapping info Scheduling Actions Summary	Click Next to use the current TID to set the transaction Journal: Receiver: Transaction ID: Transaction Timestamp: Read Interval (sec):	ent transaction read point from ID from which to replicate. OLETEST.QSQJRN OLETEST.QSQJRN3424 5550 6/28/2022 9:42:41 PM 60	the IBM i/AS400 server. To ov	Read TID
		< Back	Next > Canc	el Help

Transaction ID

The ID for the transaction at which you want to start replication. If you want to change the transaction ID, click **Read TID** to open the Read Point dialog. In this dialog, you can either retrieve the current transaction or the transaction for a specified date and time. If you enter a date and time, Syniti Replicate retrieves the first transaction after the time entered. This information is available and can be changed in the Replication Properties dialog after the wizard is completed.

Transaction Timestamp

The timestamp for the transaction above.

Read Interval (sec)

The frequency (in seconds) with which you want to check the log during replication. For example, if the setting is 90 seconds, Syniti Replicate will check the log every 90 seconds to see if any transactions have occurred that need to be replicated to the target table. This information is available and can be changed in the Replication Properties dialog after the wizard is completed.

- 12. In the Transaction ID field, click Read TID to open the Read Point dialog.
- 13. Choose either the current transaction or a transaction ID based on a time and date.
- 14. Click **OK** to add the value to the Source Log Info screen.

- 15. Set the value of the Read Interval field to the frequency with which you want Syniti Replicate to check the transaction log for new events to mirror.
- 16. Click Next to go to the Select Target Connection screen.

💧 Create Replication Wiz	ard				×
			Syniti	Replic	ate
Replication type Source connection	Select the target connect	ction and table to be replicated.			
Source log info	Connection Name:	SQLServer-Tgt		~]
Target log info	Database Name: Owner Name:	Test		~]
Scheduling Actions	Table Name:	CUSTOMER		~	J
Summary				Open Table	
Contemportune					
		< Back	Next >	Cancel	Help

- 17. Choose a target source name from the drop-down list that includes all the target connections you have created.
- Choose the table to which you want to replicate from the drop-down list.
 If no tables are listed, you need to exit the wizard and add or create a target table.
- 19. If you want more information about the table before proceeding, click Open Table....
- 20. Click **Next** to go to the Set Mapping Info screen.

Replication type Source connection Source log info Target log info Scheduling Actions Summary Field name Ordinal CUSTOMERD 0 MoDiFEDDATE 0 MoDiFEDDATE 0 MoDiFEDDATE 0 ModiFEDDATE 0 ModiFEDDATE 0 ModiFEDDATE 0	💰 Create Replication Wiz	zard			×
Replication type Source connection Source log info Target log info Mapping info Scheduling Actions Summary Field name Ordinal Ordinal Type Size Customerer. Tgt] Field name Target Table Ordinal Type Size Customerer. Tgt] Field name Target Table Field name Target Table Customerer. Tgt] Size Field name Target Table Ordinal Type Summary Size			Syr	niti Rep	licate
Target connection Field name Ordinal Type Summary Field name Ordinal Type Size Size Customerity Gustomerity Gustomerity Size Size Size Field name Target Table Ordinal Type Size Size Size Customerity Sold Server-Tgt) Sold Server-Tgt) 1 int 4 Customerity Field name Target Table Ordinal Type Size Size	Replication type Source connection	The mapping has been automatically get arget fields. Drag source fields to targ	enerated using the default ma get fields or use the toolbar to	pping rule to match so edit mappings.	urce and
Field name Target Table Ordinal Type Size § CUSTOMERID [SQLServer-Tgt] 1 int 4 (TERRITORYID [SQLServer-Tgt] 2 int 4 1 ACCOUNTNU [SQLServer-Tgt] 3 varchar 10	Target connection Target log info <i>Mapping info</i> Scheduling Actions	[IBMDB2i-Src] OLETEST.CUSTO Field name Ordinal CUSTOMERID 01 TERRITORYID 02 ACCOUNTNU 03 CUSTOMERT 04 ROWGUID 05 MODIFIEDDATE 06		[SQLServer-Tgt] Tes Field name CUSTOMERID TERRITORYID ACCOUNTNU CUSTOMERT ROWGUID MODIFIEDDATE	Ordinal Ty 01 in 02 in 03 vz 04 nc 05 bi 06 dz
	Summary	Field name Target Table CUSTOMERID [SQLServer-Tgt] TERRITORYID [SQLServer-Tgt] ACCOUNTNU [SQLServer-Tgt]	Ordinal Type 1 int 2 int 3 varcha	Size 4 4 r 10	

Source and target columns with the same name are automatically mapped. You can also map columns by dragging the target column and dropping it on the source column, or you can map a column to an expression. For more information about mapping, check the Replication Wizard help topic. An alternative is to write a script to set mappings at runtime.

21. Click Next to go to the Scheduling screen.

💰 Create Replication Wiza	ard X
	Syniti Replicate
Replication type Source connection	Set scheduling information for the replication.
Source log info Target connection Target log info	 Enable Replication Execute Initial Refresh Start Time: 6/29/2022 2:10:45 PM 2:10:45 PM Refresh Schedule Mirroring Schedule Verifier Schedule
Mapping into Scheduling Actions Summary	Run One Time Only Run Recurrently:
	Add Remove Edit Sack Next > Cancel Help

- 22. Make sure the **Enable Replication** option is checked. This is required for the replication to run.
- 23. Set a start time for the replication. The **Start Time** field indicates the time at which the Replication Agent will begin considering the replication for execution.
- 24. Check the option to **Execute Initial Refresh** if needed.

If you check this option, a full replication will be performed from the source to the target table, prior to starting the mirroring process where only incremental changes will be replicated.

- 25. Go to the Mirroring Schedule tab.
- 26. Select how you want to run the replication:
 - **Run Continuously**: the transaction log will be checked for changes to the table using the frequency that you specified on the Set Log Info tab. Any changes will be replicated to the target table.
 - Schedule Interruptions: the replication process will run as above, except for interruptions specified when you click the Schedule button in the Scheduler dialog.
- 27. Click Next to go to the Summary screen.
- 28. Click Finish to complete the wizard.

Set Up the Syniti Replicate Environment on Node 2

Set up the Metadata

When setting up Syniti Replicate on Node 1 of your MS Windows Failover Cluster, you created a new metadata database. Now, on Node 2, you will point to the same metadata database as described below. DO NOT create a new database here because the two instances of Syniti Replicate must share the same metadata.

1. Start the Management Center.



- 2. In the Metadata Explorer, right click on the local node and choose Add New Metadata.
- 3. In the Metadata Connection wizard, type a Metadata name and select the database type from the dropdown list.

NOTE: If you are setting up the metadata on Node 2, you should select the same settings as on Node 1.

💰 Metadata Connection	Wizard	×
		Syniti Replicate
Select provider Set connection string	Select the datat use. We recom	base that will contain the Syniti Replicate metadata tables and indicate which provider to mend that you create and use a database exclusively for Syniti Replicate metadata
Select qualifier	Name:	Cluster Metadata
Actions	Data Provider(s)	
Summary	Database:	Microsoft SQL Server CE 🗸
	Provider:	Microsoft.NET Driver for SQL Server CE 🗸
Constant of the second	Assembly:	SqlServerCe\System.Data.SqlServerCe.dll
		< Back Next > Cancel Help

- 4. Enter a value in the Assembly field as required for the database you selected.
- 5. Click Next.
- 6. In the Set Connection String screen, choose Select Existing Database from the drop-down menu (if using MS SQL Server CE) or type the location of the database and any additional data required (for example, in some cases you need to supply a port number.) Be sure to select the same settings as on Node 1.

💰 Metadata Connectio	on Wizard	×
		Syniti Replicate
Select provider Set connection	Specify the connection parameters for the metadata.	
string	Connection properties	
Select qualifier	✓ Required	
Define metadata	Data Source Deseword	
Actions	 ✓ Optional 	
Actions	Enlist Fai	lse
Summary	Encrypt Fa	lse
	Mode Re	ad Write
	ExtendedProperties Data Source The name or network address of the instance of SQ	L Server to which to connect.
Statistic base	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	< Back	Next > Cancel Help

- 7. Add the user ID and password for the database.
- 8. For all other providers, edit at least the Required connection properties by clicking in the property value field and typing a new value. The list of Optional properties for .NET and OLE DB providers contains the most commonly used properties for the providers. Edit these as needed. Note that some properties are displayed with default values (no bold text.) Any values that you add or edit are displayed in bold text. Check the documentation for your provider for a complete list of properties. You can set the value of the ExtendedProperties property to define additional property-value pairs. The syntax for defining property-value pairs is: prop1=val1;prop2=val2;....
- 9. Click **Test** to test the connection to the database server.
- 10. Click Next.
- 11. In the Define Metadata screen, select the option Open an Existing Database.
- 12. Select the metadata database that was created for Node 1.

💰 Metadata Connection	Wizard
	Syniti Replicate
Select provider Set connection string Select qualifier Define metadata Actions Summary	Determine if you want to create a new set of metadata or if you want to import metadata from a backup file. Define Metadata Create a new metadata database Restore the metadata set from a backup file: Open existing metadata database
	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > <u>C</u> ancel <u>H</u> elp

- 13. Click Next, then complete the wizard.
- 14. In the Metadata Explorer, right click on the metadata that you just created and choose Set As Default from the menu.

Your new metadata database will be used for all subsequent operations on Syniti Replicate.

- 15. In the Metadata Explorer, right click on the local node, and choose **Replication Agent Options** from the menu.
- 16. In the Replication Agent Options dialog, go to the **Log** tab.
- 17. Make sure that **Write Log to File** is selected, and specify a path to an external failsafe file location that can be accessed by both Node 1 and Node 2.
- 18. Click **OK** to complete the dialog.

🔅 Replication Agent	Options			×
🖉 Trace	Alerts	🔀 Mail	🖳 Ad	vanced
差 General	-‡- Co	nversion Rules	1=	Log
<u>L</u> og Settings:		(<u>S</u> ettings	
Write Log To:	File	~		
 ○ Only One ○ One File E ○ One File V ✓ Keep Max Log Files Path 	File. very 0 ↓ Vith <u>S</u> ize Limited t 10 ↓ L :	Days. o <u>10</u>	Mb.	
Activate Log	History			
Activate Log	Performance			
<u>H</u> elp			<u>о</u> к	<u>C</u> ancel

Test the Source Connection

- 1. Make sure you have a database connection via a .NET data provider to your source database:
 - Install and configure one of the supported data access products. See <u>this Help Center article</u> for a current list of supported providers.
 - From the data access product, test the connection to the database.
 - Create a connection string for the data access product/database you are using. Check the documentation for the data access product for information on how to do this.
 - Check that the user ID you are planning to use for the database connection has sufficient permissions to complete all operations in Syniti Replicate. The user ID should have permissions to connect, select tables, insert/update/delete records. For complete details, see the **Syniti Replicate Setup Guide** that is specific to your source database (available from the Syniti Technical Support team via the <u>Help Center</u>).

🚯 Syniti Replicate - Management Center



- 2. In the Metadata Explorer, expand the metadata node to view the Sources and Targets nodes.
- 3. Select the **Sources** node.
- 4. From the right mouse button menu, choose Connection Properties.
- 5. In the Connection Properties dialog, click **Test** to make sure that the connection correctly opens a database connection.
- 6. If the connection does not work, check that you have installed the correct .NET Provider. Test the provider using the tools included with the provider. For any other issues, contact the Technical Support Team via the <u>Help Center</u>.
- 7. When testing is successful, click **OK** to close the Connection Properties dialog.
- 8. If you selected **Log Server Agent** as the Transactional Replication mode on Node 1, you need to install the Log Server Agent Service on Node 2 so that Syniti Replicate can access the log.
- 9. On Node 2, in the Metadata Explorer, right click on the source connection and choose **Transactional Setup** then **Enable**....
- 10. In the Enable Transactional Replication wizard, choose the Log Server Agent option.



- 11. Follow the Enable Transactional Replication Wizard to install the Log Server Agent Service.
- 12. The Log Server Folder and Log Files Folder paths should be accessible from both nodes in the cluster.

💰 Enable Transactional R	Replication Wizard	×
	Syniti Replicate	e
Log Type Log Settings Agent Settings Agent Scheduling Actions	Specify folders to contain configuration and log files, a prefix for log file names and a name for the Windows Service. For Oracle 12, optionally specify Log Container details. Log Server Agent Settings Log Server Folder Log Files Folder:	
Summary	Prefix: Log File Size 10 Keep Max Files: 50 • Extra Options Trace Trace • Use Log Container 10.2.3.12/ORCL • • • User - Password system • • •	
	Use Remote LSA. Address / Port Vindows Service: Prefix: Syniti_LSA_ Name: Syniti_LSA_ Start Service after completing the wizard	
	< Back Next > Cancel Help	

Test the Target Connection

Note that you must install, configure and test the connection to the database to which you are replicating before attempting to create a target connection to the database from Syniti Replicate. For example, if you are replicating from Oracle to MySQL, you need .NET data providers installed and tested for both Oracle and MySQL.

- 1. In the Metadata Explorer, right click the target connection and choose **Connection Properties** from the menu.
- 2. In the Connection Properties dialog, click **Test** to make sure that the connection correctly opens a database connection.
- 3. If the connection does not work, check that you have installed the correct .NET Provider. Test the provider using the tools included with the provider. For any other issues, contact the Technical Support Team via the <u>Help Center</u>.
- 4. When testing is successful, click **OK** to close the Connection Properties dialog.

Test the Replication

If you installed the Replication Agent as a service during setup, you just need to start the service using the Service Monitor program sin the Windows Notification Area.

- The replication that you have scheduled should start at the specified time.
- Use the Replication Monitor tab in the Management Center to track the progress of the replication.

To run the Replication Agent interactively:

- In the Windows Notification Area, select the Service Monitor icon
- From the right mouse button menu, choose **Replication Agent**, then **Start** then **Application**. The replication that you have scheduled should start at the specified time.
- Use the Replication Monitor tab in the Management Center to track the progress of the replication.

Stop the Syniti Replicate Services (Node 1 and Node 2)

Syniti Replicate uses a minimum of two or three Windows services:

Syniti Replication Agent

Syniti Server Agent

Syniti_LSA_xxx (only present if the Log Server Agent has been selected as the transactional replication type.) The services on both nodes must be managed by the Failover Cluster Manager as follows.

- 1. In the Windows Notification Area, right click on the Service Monitor icon **Service**. From the menu, choose **Replication Agent** then **Stop**.
- 2. Right click on the Service Monitor icon **Server Agent** then **Stop**.
- 3. If you selected Log Server Agent as your transactional replication mode, stop the LSA service you created:
 - In the **Metadata Explorer**, right click on the source connection name and choose **Transactional Setup** then **Manage**....
 - Click **Stop** to stop the service.
- 4. On the Windows desktop, open the Control Panel.
- 5. Open the Services window from Administrative Tools.
- 6. Change the Startup Type of the three Syniti Replicate services from Automatic to Manual.
- 7. Repeat these steps on the other node.

This is the first step to allowing the Failover Cluster Role to manage the services later.

Use the Failover Cluster Manager to create a failover role for the three Syniti Replicate services.

Set Up the Failover Cluster

- 1. Open the Failover Cluster Manager.
- 2. Under the cluster name, right click on Roles > Configure Roles...

📲 Failover Cluster Mana	ager	
File Action View H	Help	
📲 Failover Cluster Mana V 🔯 WS19ALWONCLST	ger Failover C	luster Manager
Re Config	gure Role	ate failover clusters, validate hardware for potential failover clusters, and perform figuration changes to your failover clusters.
> 📇 St Virtual	l Machines >	ropriou
CI Create	e Empty Role	cluster is a set of independent computers that work together to increase the availability of
Refres	sh	s. The clustered servers (called nodes) are connected by physical cables and by software. If nodes fails, another node begins to provide services. This process is known as failover.
Help		
		usters

3. In the High Availability Wizard Select Role screen, choose Generic Service.

퉳 High Availability	Wizard			×
Select Re	ble			
Before You Begin Select Role Select Service Client Access Point Select Storage Replicate Registry Settings Confirmation Configure High Availability Summary	Select the role that you want to configure for high avail DFS Namespace Server DHCP Server Distributed Transaction Coordinator (DTC) File Server Generic Application Generic Service Hyper-V Replica Broker CSCSI Target Server	ability:	Description: You can configure high availability for some services that were not originally designed to run on a cluster. For more information, see <u>Configuring Generic</u> <u>Applications, Scripts, and Services</u> .	
		< <u>P</u> re	vious <u>N</u> ext > Cancel]

- 4. Click Next.
- 5. In the Select Service screen, choose the Syniti Server Agent Service.

🧞 High Availability	r Wizard	×
Select S	ervice	
Before You Begin Select Role	Select the service you want to use from the list	t.
Select Service	Name	Description ^
Client Access Point Select Storage Replicate Registry Settings Configmation Configure High Availability Summary	Storage Service Storage Tiers Management Syniti Replication Agent Syniti Server Agent Syniti Verffer Scheduler SysMain System Event Notification Service System Events Broker System Guard Runtime Monitor Rmker	Provides enabling services for storage settings Optimizes the placement of data in storage tiers Replicates relational data based on settings pro Provides support to the Syniti DR Management Manages scheduled verifications of replications Maintains and improves system performance ov Monitors system events and notifies subscribers Coordinates execution of background work for Monitors and attests to the intenrity of the Wind
		< <u>Previous</u> <u>Next</u> > Cancel

- 6. Click Next.
- 7. In the **Client Access Point** screen, specify a role name. This guide uses DBMOTO_ROLE as an example.

Before You Begin Type the name that clients will use when accessing this clustered role: Select Role Name: DBMOTO_ROLE Select Service Image: DBMOTO_ROLE Image: DBMOTO_ROLE Client Access Point Image: DBMOTO_ROLE Image: DBMOTO_ROLE Select Storage The NetBIOS name is limited to 15 characters. One or more DHCP IPv4 addresses were configured automatically. Replicate Registry Settings The NetBIOS name is limited to 15 characters. One or more DHCP IPv4 addresses were configured automatically. Configure High Availability Summary	High Availability	Wizard	×
< Provinue Nod > Consol	Before You Begin Select Role Select Service Client Access Point Select Storage Replicate Registry Settings Confirmation Configure High Availability Summary	Type the name that clients will use when accessing this clustered role: Ngme: DBMOTO_ROLE Image: DBMOTO_ROLE Image:	

8. Complete the wizard.

igh Availability	Wizard	×
Summary		
Before You Begin Select Role	High availability was successfully configured for the role.	
Select Service	Syniti Server Agent (SynitiDR_ServerAgent)	^
Client Access Point	Network Name	
Select Storage	DBMOTO_ROLE	
Replicate Registry	OU	
Settings	CN=Computers,DC=hitsw,DC=com	
Confirmation	IP Address	
Configure High	DHCP address on 10.60.10.0/24	
Availability	Warnings	
Summary	* The only nodes with the resource type that supports this role are WS19-ALWON-SQL1.	
		×
	To view the report created by the wizard, click View Report. To close this wizard, click Finish.	<u>V</u> iew Report
		<u>F</u> inish

- 9. Add the Syniti ReplicateReplication Agent Service and the Log Server Agent service (if used) as additional resources to the role you have created.
- 10. Stop the role if it was started.
- 11. Right click on the role name to select Add Resource then Generic Service.



12. In the Select Service screen, choose the Syniti Replication Agent Service.

😰 New Resource V	/izard		×
Select S	ervice		
Select Service	Select the service you want to use from the list	t	
Configure Generic	Name	Description	^
Summary	Storage Service Storage Tiers Management Syniti Replication Agent Syniti Verifier Scheduler SysMain System Event Notification Service System Events Broker System Guard Runtime Monitor Broker Tarnet Mananer	Provides enabling services for storage settings Optimizes the placement of data in storage tiers Replicates relational data based on settings pro Manages scheduled verifications of replications Maintains and improves system performance ov Monitors system events and notifies subscribers Coordinates execution of background work for Monitors and attests to the integrity of the Wind Allows Failover Cluster service to manage Stora	~
		Next > Cancel	

13. Click Next.

🖆 New Resource W	izard	×
Confirma	tion	
Select Service Confirmation	You are ready to make a Generic Service.	
Configure Generic Service	Registry Keys	^
Summary	To continue, click Next.	~
	< Previous Next > Can	cel

14. Complete the wizard.

New Resource Wi	zard	×
Summary		
Select Service	The new resource was successfully created and configured.	
Confirmation		
Configure Generic Service	Service	٦
Summary	Syniti Replication Agent (SynitiDR_ReplicationAgent)	
	To view the report created by the wizard, click View Report To close this wizard, click Finish.	
	<u>F</u> inish]

15. Repeat steps 10 to 13 to add the Log Server Agent service (Syniti_LSA_xxx), if used.

The Syniti ReplicateReplication Agent Service depends on the Syniti ReplicateServer Agent to be running before it can start, so you need to add dependency to the Replication Agent service in the Failover Cluster Manager.

- 16. Display the role in the bottom pane of the Failover Cluster Manager.
- 17. Right click on the Replication Agent Service and choose **Properties** from the menu.

V DBMOTO_ROLE				Preferred Owners:	Any node
Name		Status	Informatio	n	
Server Name					
🗉 🔩 Name: DBMOTO_ROLE		🕥 Online			
Roles					
😫 Syniti Server Agent		🕥 Online			
Syniti Replication Agent	-	(Online			
	1	Bring Online			
	*	Take Offline			
	-	Information Details			
	1	Show Critical Events			
		More Actions	•		
	×	Remove			
	E	Properties			

18. On the Properties Dependencies tab, add Syniti Server Agent as a dependency.

Advanced Policies			Registry Replication				
General		Dependen	cies	Policies			
ec bn	ify the resource ought online:	es that must be brough	nt online before	e this resource			
Τ	AND/OR	Resource					
		Syniti Server Agent					
	Click here to a	dd a dependency					
			Insert	Delete			
nit	i Server Agent		Insert	Delete			
nit	i Server Agent		Insert	Delete			

19. Click OK to complete the dialog.

The critical Syniti Replicate services are now controlled by the role you have created in the Failover Cluster Manager. To start all the services for replication, and for working in the Syniti Replicate Management Center, start the role. Note that, if the role is stopped, no replications in Syniti Replicate can occur because the Syniti services are also stopped.

Start the Role (Node 1 or Node 2)

Now that the failover role is set up, you can use it to start, stop the services and test failover by moving the role to the other node on the cluster. It is highly recommended that you control the Syniti services from the Failover Cluster Manager, rather than from the Windows Control Panel or the Syniti Replicate Service Monitor.

• In the Failover Cluster Manager, right click on the role and choose **Start Role**.

📲 Failover Cluster Manager					
File Action View Help					
🝓 Failover Cluster Manager	Roles (2)				
VS19ALWONCLSTR1.hitsw.	Search			PQ	ueries 🔻 🖡
Roles	N	a	-		D
Nodes	DBMOTO_ROLE	Status	Type	Owner Node	Phonty
> 📙 Storage			Consis Consist	MICTO ALMONECO	Madium
	C DBMOTO_ROLE			WS19-ALWON-SQ	Medium
Networks	BBMOTO_ROLE	G Start Role		WS19-ALWON-SQ	Medium
Networks I Cluster Events	SyniAG	Start Role		WS19-ALWON-SQ	Medium
(Instein Free States) Example: Cluster Events	syniAG	Start Role Stop Role Move	•	WS19-ALWON-SQ	Medium

Test Failover Cluster Operations

To test the failover, use the Failover Cluster Manager to move the role from one cluster node to the other, simulating a failover situation. A failover role can run on either node: the Failover Cluster Manager displays the current role status and can be used to move a role from one node to another.

• In the Failover Cluster Manager, right click on the role and select **Move** from the menu, then choose **Select Node...** to select a new node to move/failover the role.

📲 Failover Cluster Manager						
File Action View Help						
🗢 🔿 🞽 🖬						
📲 Failover Cluster Manager	Roles (2)					
VIII WS19ALWONCLSTR1.hitsw.	Search		_	P	Queries 🔻 🔒	•
彈 Nodes	Name	Status	Тур	e	Owner Node	
> 📇 Storage	C DBM	Chart Dala	Generic Service Other		WS19-ALWON-S	5Q
Networks	syni/	Stop Role			WS19-ALWON-S	5Q
		Move +		Best Possible No	de	
	•	Change Startup Priority		Select Node		
		Information Details				
		Show Critical Events				
	2	Add Storage				
	S 1	Add Resource				